
UNITED STATES DISTRlCT COURT 


WESTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 


UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ~. 
Plaintiff, ) 

.~v. CML ACTIONNO.2:11~v~01498,~AJS 

ATFFITNESS PRODUCTS. INC.. and < 

MANUFACTURING ATF DEDICATED )

EXCELLENCE, INC., corp()ration~, and·. J /.

JAMES G. VERCELLOTTI,an individual; ) 


) 

________D_e_fe_n_da_.n_ts_._.:...--'--___~.. 

'c;ONSENTDECREE OF PERMANENT lNJYNCfION 


.Plilintiff,t/ie UnitedStat~ of AIn;ettca,by itsunde~i&nedattorpeys, hayblgIDeda 


. Complaint for Permanent InjunctiQn("Complnint") agamstATF FitnessP,oducts,Inc. eATF"), . 

and Manufacturing ATF Dedicated ExceUence, Inc; ("MADE"), corwrations currently 

manufacturing and. distributing dietary supplements at 140 Pennsylvania Avenue, Oakmont, 

Pennsylvania, and James G. Vercellolti,an individual (collectively, "~fend"ants"),and 

Defendants having appeared. and consented toeritly 'of thi~ 1)ecreeWt.thol\toontes~ ~nd,be'fore 

anytestil;pony Ilas been taken, and the !.lnite~L$tatesofAmerica,having .consentedtothis 

Decree; 

iT IS HEREBY ORDERED, .ADJUnOED, AND DECREED as tollows: 

1. This Court hasjurisdic6onover the subject matter of this action and has personal 


jurisdiction over all parties to this acUon. 


2. . The Complaint States,H cause·of action againstDefep,c1antsunder the Federal 


Foo(l, Drug, artdCosmetic Act; 21 U.S.C.~§ 301-399d (the" "Act"). 


3. Defendants violate tneAc:t, 21 U.S.C. §331(a),by introducing, or delivering for 


introduction, ipto ibterstate commerce articles offood (dietarysupplemen~s, ilS defined by 21 


U.S.C. § 32] (ff)), that are adulterated within. the meaning.of21 U.S.C. § 342(g)(1),in that they 
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have been manufactured, prepared, packed, labeled, and held in violation of current good 

manufacturing practice ("cOMP") regulations, as set forth at 21 C.F.R. Part Ill, 

4. Defendants violate the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 331(k), by causing the adulteration within 

the meaning of21 U.S.C. § 342(g){1) ofarticles offood (dietary supplements), while sueh 

articles are held for sale after shipment ofone or mote of their components in interstate 

conunerce. 

5. DefendantsvioHitelhe Act,'2l U.S.C; §331(a» by introducing and causing to be 

introduced, and delivering and causing robe. delivered for introduction, into interstate commerce 

articles offood (dietary supplements) that,are misbranCied withinthe.meaning of21 V.S.C: 

§ 343(a)(I), in that their labeling is false a:!' luisleading, and 21 U.S.c: §343(s)(2)(A)(i),in that 

their labeling fails to name each jngredient that is described in21 U.S.C. §321(ft).\. 

6. Defendants violate the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 331(k),by causIng the misbranding, 

within the meaningof 21 U:S.C; §§ 343(a)(1} and (s)(2)(A){i), ofarticles offood (dietary 

supplements); while such articles are lield for sale afiershipinenc of one or mor~ of their 

components in interstate commerce.. 

7. Defendants violate the Act, 21 U.S.C; § 331(e); by failing to maintain and/o!' 

submit serious adverse event reports associated with the use of their dietarysupp~ements)n the 

United State~, as required by 21 U.S;C. § 379aa-l. 

S. Upon elltryofthi~De9ree~ Defetldantsandeacn aodell oftheir directors, officers! 

agents, representatives, employees,attomeys. successors, and assigns; an.d any and all persons or 

entities in active concerflor participation with any of them who receive actual notice of this 

Decree by personal service or otherwise, are permanently restrained and enjoined under 11 

U.S.C. § 332(a) from directly or indirectly rnanufucttiring, preparing', packing, labeling, holding, 

andlor distributing any dietary supplements unJess and until: 

A; Defendants' facilities, methods,processes, and controls used to 

manufacture, prepare, pack, label. holi:I,srlddistribute dietary supplementS are established, 

operated, and administered incompliance with this Decree, the Act, and its iniplementing 

regulations; 
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8. Defendants retain, at Defendants' expense, an independent person or 

persons (the "Expert"), who is without any personal or financjal ties (other than the retention 

agreement) to Defendants and dleir families, and who, by ryason of baCkground, training, 

education, or experience, is 'lualitied to: (1) inspect Defendants"dietary supplement 

manufacturing facilities to determine wh,etberthe facilitles~'ll1e~ho~s, processes,a.nd controls are 

()perated ~d administered in confoimitywithcGMP, 21C.F.R Part lIt; and(2) evaluate 

Defendants' compliance with 21 U.S.C. §§ 343 arid 379aa-L Defen~aJlt$shall notify the United 

States Food and Drog Administration ("FDA") in writing oithe identi~y and qualificatiOns of the 

Expert as soon as they retain such Exp~rt;. 

C. The Expert. perforrnsa eomprehensiveirt~pection ofDefend,ants' .faciHties" 

metbods, proqesses,and controls used to manufacture, prepare, pac~label,h(ild. and distribute 

dietary suppleme:nts to detemlinewhethertheyare.ul" compli~c,e.withcdMp,inchlding,but·not 

limited to, ensuring that Defendants: 

(1) Implement a system ofptoduction and processcdntrols UUltcoversaH stagys of 

manufayturing; preparing, packing, labeling, and holdingofdietruy slJpplemetits to ensure the'~ 
I quality of the dietary supplements and that the dietary suppfemeb'tsare packed and labeled as 

specified in themastermanufacturJngrecords ("MMRs"),a-s required.b:y21 OfF;R. lUr,sS; 

(2) Prepare and follow a. written MMR for ~ch.unique fonnuiati'OIl of dietary 

supplement and for each batch size to ensure unifonntty.ufth.efinished batch,fiorn batch to 

batch, as required by 21' C.F.R. § 111 .20S; 

(3) Include all dlerequiredinformation inthe IV,1.MR,.as required byZl C.F.R. 

§ 111.210; 

(4) Ensure a qualifiedpersbntimelyand thoroughly reviews andlor investigates all 

product complaints. to determine whether the' complaints mvO.lve a possible faitureofa dietary 

supplement to meet any of its specifications, or any other reql!irements of 21 CJf.R. Part 111, 

including those specifications and other requirements tl~at, if not met, may.result in a risk of 

illness or.injury, as reqUired by 21 C.F.R. § 111.S60(a); 

L 
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(5) Implement written procedures to ensure that Defendants' quality control 

personnel conduct a material review and make a disposition decision if an established 

specification is not met, a batch deviates from the MMR, and/or' an unanticipated occurrence 

happens during the manufacturing operations,as required by 21 C.F.R. § 111.113(a); 

(6) EstablL'lh and follow written procedures tbat $Pecify tlie responsiQilities of the 


quality control operations, as.require<i by21 C.F.R. § 1 11.}03; 


(7), Implement Writtetiproceduresspectfying the, retenpon ofrecords, as requited by 

'21 C.F,R. §§1l1.605 and 11 1.610; 

(8) Make and keep documentation of the qualification of a supplier for th~ pllIpose of 

relying on.the supplier's certificate ofanalysis, as requirQd by 2IC.F.R. § J 11.95(b)(2); 

(9) EStablish and, follow written procedures to Mfill tberequirements regarding 

product complaints set forth in 21 C.F.R. §§ 111.560 and UL570, (jS requlredby2iC.F.R. 

§111.553; 

(10) Make andkeep documentation of anycalibtalibri,~a<:hth'Qe the caiibration is 

. performed, for instruments and con~ls, as required by 21.C.F:R. § 111.35$)(3); 

. (II) Identifyand use /In appropriate soientifically vaHOmethodfor each.estabiished 

specification for which testing orexiltnination is required to. tfetermine \vhether''the sp~kitication. 

is met, as required by 21 C.F.R.§ 111.3200»; 

(12) Ensure, batchproduclioll records include documentation wheiherql.U1lity control 
, '" ' ,. .. 

pel1!onnel apPr0ved IiUld reJeas.ed,or rejected, a batch fordistribution;as required by 21 C.F;R, 

.§ 111.260(1)(3); 

(13) Makealld' keep documentation, in individual equipment logs, of the date of the' 

use, maintenance, cleaning. and sanitizing of.eq'uipmenr, unless suell documentation is kept with 

the batch record. as required by 21 C.F.R. § 111.35(b)(2); 

(14) Make and keep records of written procedures for laboratory operations, illchiding 

written procedures for the tests and examinations conducted to detennine whether specifications 

are met, as required by 21 C.F.R. § 1 I l.325(b)(1); 
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(15) Hold components, dietary' supplements,packagirtg, and labels ,under conditions 

that cio not J~d to the mixup, contamination, or deterioration ofcomponents, dietary 

supplements, packagiTlg, and labels, as required by21 C.P.R. § 111,455(c); 

(16) Maintain, clean, and sanitize, as necessary, ,all equ_pment, utensils, and 

any other contact surfaces used to ml,l.nufacture, prepare, pacK"label, or hold components or 

dietary supplements,.as ~quired by 21 C.F.R. §Tt L27(d); 

(17) Confrrm the identity ofcOlnponen~ bieith~{c()Ildllctingf!.ppropriate tests or 

examinations Qrqualifying the components' supplier, aste<:iuiredby 2i C.F.R. § 11 1.75(a);and 

-(18) restor examine, using a statisticaJ!Yvalid.samplin,g planj' a-subset of fwished 

dietary supplement batches {o verify thatthe~at~4:ineets prqqu~t ~p~cifications foddelltity, 

purity, strength, and composftion and for limits on those tYpesQ(contatnit;uition that m~y 

adulterate the finished batch of the rueUtrysupplement, as required by 21 C.F.R; §111.7S(c)(2). 

D. The Expert certifies inwtiting to FDA that: 

(I) He or she has insp~ted Defendants' facitities,methods,processes~ and contro,ls 

\lseci QyDefendants to manufacture,p@,p~re,pack, .lab~l, hold,and distribute dietary 

supplements; 

(2) AU cGMP deviattonsbtought tb Defendat,1Watt~lltibllPYroA.. the Expett, pr any 

other source, inc1udi,ngbt!-t np,t liniitedtoany experts tllredprlor to.'t'h:eelltry ofthis Decree, have 

been coitected; 

(3) Such facilities, methods; processes, and controls are it'lcompIiance with the ' 

requirements orcGMP. As part.of this certification, the ExpertshaJlincliJde a full aildcoinplete 

detaile;4 report qf thf: resuJ.ts of his or her inspectiQn; 

(4) The Expert has revie~ed the labelirigfoiallofDeiendp.nts' dietary supplements 

and 1]8S detennined tbat such labeling is in full compliance wiib21 U,S.c. § 343; and, 

(5) The Expert has reviewed all complaints Defendants have received regarding their 

dietary supplements and determined that all serious adverse eveilts associated with the use of 

Defendants' die1ary supplements in the United States have been reported to FDA as required by 

21 U.S.C. § 379aa-lj 
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E. Defendants report to FDA in writing the actions they have taken to: 

(J) Correct all deviations brought to Defendants' attention by FDA, the Expert, and 

any other source, including but not limited to any experts hired prior ~o the entry ofthis Decree; 

(2) Ensure that the methods and processes used in, and the facilities and controls used 

for, manufacturing, preparing, packillg, labeling, bolding, and distributing dietary supplements 

are operat~ and will be continuously administered in conformity \vith cOMP, 21 C.F,R. Part 

111; 

(3) Ensure that their dietary supplements are labeled in accordance with 21 U,S.C. 

§343; and 

. (4) . ,Eusure thetall serious adverse event reports ~sociated witli the use of their 

dietary supplements are dinely reportec'\ to FDA, as requiredby21 U.S.C.§ 379aa-l; 

F. FDArepresentatives inspectDefendants' ft¢iHties. methods, proc~sses, 

and controls todetermioe whether therequiremeIIJS bf$is.Oecreehave beellmet, including 

whether (1) Defendants are ~pera~ingin conformity with 21 U;S.C.§342(SXh and 21 C.F.R. 

Part 111; (2) Defendants"dietary supplements are labeled inconfonnance with 21 U.S.C. § 343; 

and (3) Defendants are operating in compliance with 21 U.S.C. § 379aa-l; and 

0; FDA notifies Defendants i!I writing that they appearfopeiri compliance 

with the requirements set forthinsubparagmphs 8(A}·(E). In no circumstance shall FDA's 

silence be construed as a substitute for written notification. 

9. Upon entry of Ihis Decree, Defendants and each arid all of their directors, officers, 

agents, employees, represenratives, .successors, assigns, attorneys, and any and all persons and 

entities in activ'econcertor pnrti9ipation with any of them, who have received actualnoticeof 

this Decree by personal service or otherwise, are permanently restrained and ~joinedunder 

21 U.S.C. § 332(a) from directly or indirectly doing or causing to be done any altho following 

acts: 

A. Introducing, or delivering for intToduction, into interstate commerc.e any 

dietary supplement that is adulterated within the meaning 0{21 U.S.C. § 342(g)(1); 
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B. Causing the adulteration ofany dietary supplement within the meaningof 

21 U.S.C. § 342(g)(1), while such dietary supplemenUs held for sale after shipment ofone or 

more of its components in interstate commerce; 

-. 
 C, . Introducing, or delivering for introduction, into interstate commerce any 


dietary supplement thatis misbranded within the meaningof21 U.S.C.§ 343(a)(1) or 


. 343(s)(2)(A)(i); 


D. Cau$ing the misbranding of any die~ry supplement within the meanipgo{ 

21 U.S.C. §343(a)(1) or 343(s)(2)(A)(i), while such dietary supplement is held for sale after 

shipmentofone or more of its componentsin interstate commerce; and 

E. Failing to maintain andlor sublllit serious adverse ~vertt reports associated 

with the use of Defendants' dietary supplements in the United States, as required by 21 U.S.c. 

§ 379aa-1. 

10. W,ithinfifteen (15Jcalendar days ;of~ntry ofthis Decree, Defendants silall,under 

FDA supervision, destroy all dietary Supplements in Defcipdants' pO$$essibn, custody, and/()r 

. control.that I1re u,d).llterated b~use tlrey w~re not manufactured~prepared, packed, iabe1ed,heldi 

and/or distributed in accordance with cOMPo Defendants shall reimburse FDA fOl' the 

supervision ofthe destructionarthe rates. set fbrth itrparagniph l30f this. Decree,J)~fen:<IantS 

shall not dispose of any djetary supplements in a manner contrary to any federal, state, or local 

lawS, including .but not limited to, the Na£ional Bnvironnlental Policy Act of.19~9, 

11. After Defendants. havecompHed withparagfaphs 8(A)-(E) and FDAhas notified 

them pursuant to paragraph 8(G), Defendants shall retain ariindependent person or persons who 

shall meetthe criteria. described in paragrapb8(B)to .conductaudit inspections oftheir dietary 

supplement manufacturing and labeling operations at lel;ist once every three (3) months, for a 

period ofno less than two (2) years, and then at leastonce.everysix (6) months for the 
. . 

subsequent three (3) years (hereinafter, "Audilor"). IfDefendanis choose,the Auditol'may be 

the same person or persons retained as the Expert in paragraphS(B). 

A.At the conclusion of each audit inspection, the Auditor shall prepare a 

detailed· writtena:udit report ("audit report") analyLing whether Defendants are in compliance 
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with this Decree, the Act, and its implementing regulations and identifying any deviations 

("audit report observations"). As a part of every audit report, except the first audit report, the 

Auditor s.ball assess the adequacy of corrective actions taken by Defendants to correct all 

previous audit report observations. The audit reports shall be delivered contemporaneously to 

Defendants and FDA by courier serviceoI' overnight delivery service, no later than fifteen (15) 

business days after the date the audit inspection(s) is completed.. In addition, Defendants shall 

maintain the audit reports in separate files at their facility and shall promptly make the audit 

reports available to FDA upon request. 

B. Iran audit report contains any observations indicating that Defendants are 

not in compliance with this Decree,dlt} Act, andlor its implementing regulations, Defendants 

shall, within thirty (30) calendar days ofreceipt of the audit report, correct tho'se observations; 

unless FDA notifies Defendants that a short~r tirpe period is necessllry. If, after receiving the 

audit report, Defendants believe thatc:orrection of the deviations wiHtake10nger than thirty (30) 

calendar days, Defendants shall, within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the audit report, 

submit to FDA in writing a proposed $chedule for completing corrections ("correction 

schedule';). The correction schedule must be reviewed and approved by FDA in writing prior to 

implementation by DefendantS. In no circumstance. shall FDA's silence be construed as a 

substitute for written approval. Deferidantsshall complete all. .corrections according to the. 

approved correction schedule. Within thirty (30) calendar days ofDefendants'receipt of an 
a\ldit report, unless FDA notit'iesDefendants that 8. shorter time period is necessary, or withlnlhe 

time period provided in a cqrrectionscheduie approved by FDA, the Auditor shal1,ceview the 

. actions taken by Defendants to correct the audit report observa,tions. Within five (5) business 

days of beginning that review, the Auditor shall report in writing to FDA whether each ofthe 

audit report observations has been corrected and, ifnot, which audit report observations remain 

uncorrected. 

I2. Represenlatives ofFDA shall be permitted, without prior notice and as and when 

FDA deems necessary, to make inspections of Defendants' operations and take any other I 
measures necessary to monitor and ensure continuing compliance with the tenns of this Decree, I 

-8~ 

Case 2:11-cv-01498-AJS   Document 16   Filed 03/09/12   Page 8 of 14



\ 
; 

~ 


the Act, ahd its implementing regulations. During such inspections, FDA representatives shall 

be permitted: (a) access to Defendants' places ofbusiness including, but not limited to, all 

buildings, equipment, finished and untinished materials and products, containers, labeling, and 

other promotionaL material therein; (b) to take photographs and make video recordings; (c) to 

take samples ofDefendants' finished and unfinished materials and products, containers, labeling, 

and other promotional material; and (d) to examine and copy allrecords relating to the receipt, 

manufacture, packaging, labeling, holding,. and distribution' ofany andalI of Defendants' dietary 

supplements, incl\lding cOmponents.. The inspections shall be p~ined upon presentation of a 

copy of this Decre~ and appropriate credentials. The inspecti(jl1authority granted by this Decree 

is Sepaf'<lte from, and in addition t~, the authoritY to makeinspectionsullder the Act, 21 U.S;C. 

§374: 

13. Defendants shaH reimbUl1ie F'DAforthe costs o fall FDA inspections, 

investigations; supervision, analYses,; examinatioi:\s, and reviews that FDA deems necessary to 

evaluate 'Defendants , compliance WiUl any part QfthisDecree. The costs of such activities shall 

be borne by Defendants at the prevailing .ratesin effectatthetUn~~e costs are incurred. As·of 

the date that this Decree is signed by the parties, these rates are; $S7.S7per hour and fraction 

tbereofp~t representative for inspection orinvestigatlVe,vo~;$104.96 .. per houtor fra:CtiQf1 

thereof per representativefot:analytical or reviewwork~ $OSI per mile for travel expenses by 

8l.ltOmobile; government rate orthc equivalent for travel. by air or other means; and the published 

goyemmentper diem rate or the equivalent fOr the areasii:lWh~ch the inspections are performed 

per-day, per-representative for subsi$tence eXPenSes; where necessary. In the event that the 

standard rates applicable to ,FDA supervisiQrt of cs)Urt-ord.~red~ompll)mce are m,odified, these 

rlltes shall be increased or decreased without further·oider of the Court 
14. Within ten (10)ca~endar days of the entry ofthis Decree, DefendantsshaU post a 

copy of tbisDecree on a bulletin board in acommon area at 140 Pennsylvanja Avenue, 

Oakmont, Pennsylvania, and at any other location .at which Defendants conduct business, and 

shall ensure that the Decree remains posted at each location for as long as the Decree remains in 

effect. 

-9
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IS. Within ten (10) calendar days of the date ofenny oftlus Decree, Defendants shall 

provide a copy of the Decree, by personal service or certified mail (restricted delivery, return 

receipt requested), to each and all of their directors, omcers, agents, employees, representatives, 

successors, assigns. attorneys, persons or entities for whom Defendants contractually 

manufacture dietary supplements, lind private label distributors with whom Defendants are 

affiliated, and any and all persons in active concert or participation with any ofthern 

(collectively referred to as "Associated Persons"). Ifany Associatedl>ersoh is a corporate entity, 

Defendants shall provide the Decree to the chief executive officer and chief legal officer of such 

entity, with instructions to them to ensure that appropriate persons within the entity receive the 

Decree. Within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of entry of this Decree, Defendants shaH 

provide to FDA an affidavit stating the fact and manner oftheii:' compliance with this paragraph, 

identifying the names, addresses, and positions of all persons who received a copy of this Decree 

.pursuant to this paragraph. 

l6. 1n the. event that any of the DefendantS becomes associated witll any additional 

Associated Person(s) at any time after entry ofthisDecree, Defendants immediately shall 

provide a copy of this Decree~ by personal service or certiti'ed mail (restricted delivery. return 

receipt requested), to such ASSociated Person(s);Within ten (J 0) calendar days of each time any 

of the Defendants becomes associa~ed witbany such additi.onal Associated Person, Defendants' 

shall provide to FDA an affidavit:stating the fachnd mannerof their compliance with this 

paragraph, identifying the names; addresses, and positions of al1 Associated Persons who 

received a copy ofthis Decree pursuant to this paragraph. Within ten (10) calendar days .of 

receiving a request from FDA for any infolIDation .or documentation. that FDA deems necessary 

to evaluate Defendants' compliance with this paragraph, Defendants shaUprovide such 

inf.ormation .or documentation to FDA. 

17. Defendants shall notify FDA, in writing, at least fifteen (15) calendar days before 

any change in ownership, character, or name ofany of their.businesses, including inc.orporati.on, 

reorganization, bankruptcy, assignment, sale resulting in the emergence ofa successor business 

or corporation, or any other change in the structure or identity .of MADE or ATF, or any of their 

-10

Case 2:11-cv-01498-AJS   Document 16   Filed 03/09/12   Page 10 of 14

http:inc.orporati.on


parents .or subsidiaries, Ct the. sale Of assignment of any business assets,. such as buildings, 

equipment, or inventory, that may affect obligations arising 9,utOfthis Decree. Detendants sltalt 

provide a copy of this Decree to any pfospective succeSSOI'or assign at least ten (1 0) calendar 

days prior to any sale or assignment. Defendants shall furnisb FDA with an affidavit cf 

compliance with tins parographno later than ten (10) calendar days prior to such assignment or 

change·in ownership. 

18. If, at any tiineafter entry of this Decree, FDA deteimines, based cn the results of 

an insPccti9D,.the <Ulalysis ofa sample, a report or data preparedorsubmitted by Defendants, the 

Expert. the Auditor,;or any otherinfonnation, that (a) Defendants have :miled to comply with any 

provision ofthjs Decree or have violated the Actor its implementingreguJations, andlor (b) 

addition8J ccrrective actions are neCessary toachieve90111pJUtn(:e with.thisDecree, the Act, 

andlor its implementing ref,tulations, FDA may, as and when iroeems necesSary, notify 

Defendants in writing of the noncompliance and order Defendants to take appropriate corrective 

actions, including; but not limited to, ordering Defendants tqUnmediatelytakebne ormcre of 

the fcI1owingactions: 

A. Cease a] Imanufacturing, packaging; labeling; holding. and/or distrib~ting 

any or alldietary suppJemerit(s}; 

B. Recall, at Defendants' own expelisei 'an}"dietaryslipplement tliatis 

adulterat~d. misbranded, or otherwise in vioJationof this Decree; the Act, and/orits 

. implementing regulations; 

.C. 'Revise, modify,or expand any r01'Olt(5)Or pJau(s) prepared pursuant to 


this Decree; 


D. Submit additional reports orinfonnationto FDA; 

E. Issue a safety alert; andlor 

F. Take any other corrective actions as FDA,·in itsqisc;retion, deems 


necessary to protect the public health or to bring Defendants into. «>mpiiance with thIs Decree•. 


the Act, andlor Its implementing regulations. 
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19. Upon receipt of any order issued by FDA pursuant to paragrapb 18. Defendants 

shall immediately and fully comply with the terms of the order. Any cessation of operations or 

, 	other action described in paragraph ] 8 shall continue until Defendants receive written 

notifkation from FDA that Defendants appear to be ill cOllipliance with this Decree, the Act, and 

its implementing regulations, and that Defendants may resume operations. The cost ofFDA 

inspeCtions, sampling. testing, travel time, and subsistence expenses to nuplementthe remedies 

set forth in paragraph 18 shall be bOrne by Defendants at the rates specified in paragraph 1.3. 

20. IfDefendants fail to comply with any of tho provisions of this Decree, including 

any time frame .imposed by this Decree, then, on motion of the United States in this proceeding, 

Defendants shall pay to the United States of America: fifteen thousand dollal'S ($15,000)in 

liquidated. damages for each day such violation continue~; an additional sum of fifteen thousand. 

dollars ($15,000) in liquidated damages fOf.each violationof this Pecrf;le,·theAct, andlor its 

I implementing regulations; and an additionalsuUl equal to .tWice the retail value of each shipment 
I 

L 	 ofadulterated and/or misbranded dietary supplements in liquidated. damages for each such 

unlawful shipment. The remedy in this paragraph shall be in addition to any other remedies 

available to the United States under this Decree or the law. 

21. Defendants shall abide by the decisions o(PDA,and FDA's decisions .shall oe 
finaL All decisions conferred upon FDA in this Decree shallbe vested in FDA's discretion and, 

if contested, shall be reviewed by this Court under the arbitrary and capricious standard setforth 

in 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A). Review bythe Court of any FDA decisipn rendered under this Decree 

shall be based exclusively on the written record before FDA at the time the decision was made. 

No discovery shall be taken by either party. 

22. All notifications, correspondence, arid communications to FDA required. by the 

tenns of this Decree shaH be fieJdressed to the District Director, FDAPliiladelphia District Office, 

u.s. Customhouse, 200 Chestnut Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, 19106. 

I 
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23. This Court retains jurisdiction over tIris action and the parties thereto . for the 

purpose of enforcing and modifYing this Decree and for the purpose of granting such additional 

relief as may be necessary or appropriate. 

SO ORDERED, this !1~y of rv14Af)\ .2012. 
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We hereby consent to the entr')' of this Decree: 

For Defendanls: For Plaintiff: I 
TONY WEST 
Assistant 1\Horney (jl!llcral'SG.ftcE~ 

! 
i 

o chaIr of ATr Fitncs."Producls. Inc., 
and Manufacturing ATF Dedicated 
Excellence. Inc. 

?Va-
MiCj:jAEi~A: CC)MBt:R 
Assistant \.I.S. At!\)rtle.y 
U.S. Anorney"s Oll1ce 

700 Grant Sirect. 

SUiH! 4000 

Pitt:;bur~h: PA 15211) 


. ()IMAG 
Collins, McDonald &0111'111.. />,(,': 
138 Mineola Olvd, 
Mineola. NY 115()1 (;1'1 ~ I!)T{)piii:rfi~. IJARlsj'-- 

Trilll t\!lOrIlCV 
Ct>l\!iltlllCr 1'1'~llccti()ll BrunchJOSEPH A. DIMENNO J)cparllllcill of Justice. Civil Division

SAMUEL R. GREGO P.O. Box 386 
[)jckit:. McCame), & Chilcntt!. P.C. WlishiIlUH1!1. DC 20().;t4 
Two PPO Place. Suile 400 ' Tekrh(~'~: 202-59S.2:Wa 
Pittsbtlrgh, PA 15222 Fax: (2()2) 514-8142 

Email: C:hril\l!)pher,E.llllrisi@usd~i·g()v 

Attorneys for ATf'! Fitncs~ Products, 1m:., OfTnllllscl: 
Manufacturing ATF Dedicated 
P,xcdlcIlCC, Inc .. and James (I., Vercelloti WIt.LI I\M B, SClllJLTl 

Acting (jc:ilell1ICilllll~cI 

El.I7.,\BETIII·L DJ('I\JNSON 
l\ctin!J. Associate (j~llcml Coullsel 

, F()~)u i'mtl Drug DiYisiLlI1 

ERIC M. BLUMBERG 
Deputy ChicI' C\)ul1scl. Litigation 

SON B. NGUYEN 
Associate Chier(\l\IH~cl 1'01" Enforcement 
United States Dcpllrtrm:nt of I-IeaIth and 
Hllman Services 
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